
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

July 1, 2020 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 841 3009 3989 

Password: 877408 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

A. Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Marty Kelsey 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action) Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business  Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery 

1. Incident Command Team Update Kim White, Incident Commander 

B. Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Plan (For Action) Kara Jackson, Director of 

 Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety 

C. Outstanding – Not Ready for Board Consideration (Placed on the agenda as a reminder of 
uncompleted business) 

1. Credentialing Criteria (presented following approval of new medical staff bylaws) 

VI. New Business  Taylor Jones  

A. Election of Officers (For Action) 

B. Board Charter: The Compliance Committee (For Review) Barbara Sowada 

C. Employee Policies (from the Human Resources Committee) (For Review) Ed Tardoni 

1. Employee Corrective Action 

2. Introductory Period 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

B. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Marty Kelsey  

1. Bad Debt (For Action)  

June Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Ed Tardoni 

1/119



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

July 1, 2020 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 841 3009 3989 

Password: 877408 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Barbara Sowada 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Richard Mathey 

I. Joint Conference Committee Richard Mathey 

IX. Contract Review Suzan Campbell, In-House Counsel 

A. Contract Consent Agenda (For Action)  

1. Ambulance Agreement Between MHSC and Sweetwater Medics 

2. The Radio Network 

3. WyoRadio 

B. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Ovid Technologies, Inc. 

2. Wolters Kluwer for UpToDate Subscription Service 

X. Medical Staff Report Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, President  

D. Mental Health Conditions - Application Forms (For Action) 

 XI. Good of the Order Taylor Jones 

XII. Executive Session  Taylor Jones 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

A. Privileges (For Action) 

XIV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

2/119



3/119



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

4/119



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

June 3, 2020 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on June 3, 2020, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, 

Medical Staff President; Mr. Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater County 

Board of County Commissioners Liaison. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Mathey read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson said a former patient shared with her she had been out of town and suffered a bad 

fall. She was told she had the option to go elsewhere but chose to come to Rock Springs. She said 

everyone was kind and caring from the start to the end of her care. She said she was grateful and 

wanted everyone to know about her great experience and asked Ms. Richardson to share her story. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. 

Motion carried. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the May 6, 2020, regular meeting as presented was made by 

Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the 

May 21, 2020, special meeting as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Mathey. Mr. 

Tardoni abstained and the motion carried. 

 

  

5/119



 

 

Minutes of the June 3, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery - Incident Command Team Update 

Ms. Kim White, Incident Command, reported this is the time to be vigilant with what we are doing. 

We continue working with public health. We continue to test surgery patients. Ms. White reviewed 

personal protective equipment requirements and said we are stressing the importance of wearing 

masks and social distancing.  

NEW BUSINESS 

Financial Hardship Policy 

Mr. Kelsey said this is the second reading of the policy and it is ready for adoption. He said the 

purpose of the policy is to deal with people who cannot pay and how to provide services to those 

individuals. Mr. Ron Cheese, Patient Financial Services Director, said it provides an opportunity 

to help patients we haven’t been able to help in the past. He said it will help the patients and help 

the Hospital. The motion to approve the policy as presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by 

Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. Mr. Jones thanked Mr. Cheese and others involved in work on creating 

the policy.  

 

Plan for Providing Patient Care Services and Scopes of Care 

Dr. Sowada said it is basically a Joint Commission requirement and Mr. Tardoni said he thinks it 

is a good thing to have. The motion to approve the plan as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; 

second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Charter 

Mr. Mathey said this is the second reading and presented the charter for approval. The motion to 

approve the charter as presented was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. 

There was discussion of federal and state regulations that govern this relationship. Mr. Mathey 

said the information was cited in the previous version of the charter. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Mr. Jones said information was provided in the packet for review and will be presented for 

discussion and approval at the July meeting. Mr. Phillips said the rules of practice discussion needs 

to be in open session not executive session. Mr. Kelsey said he thinks we can review and discuss 

the following month.  

 

FY21 Operating and Capital Budget 

Mr. Jones said the budget was reviewed in a special workshop. He said this item is listed under 

new business but the Board has reviewed the information and is ready to take action. Mr. Kelsey 

said the budget the staff put together is a good one. He said he knows it is not sustainable over 

time and we need to watch carefully for the next several months. Mr. Kelsey said we may make 

6/119



 

 

Minutes of the June 3, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

some decisions in October based on the trend. He said we must be cognizant of what’s happening 

around us. Mr. Jones agreed and thanked staff for their work. He said certainly there is an 

opportunity to change the budget if needed. Mr. Tardoni said it is a good idea to look at it again in 

four or five months. Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, thanked the department heads, Ms. 

Jan Layne-Controller, and Ms. Erika Taylor, Staff Accountant, for their hard work. The motion to 

approve the FY21 operating and capital budget as presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by 

Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson thanked staff, physicians, and everyone working so hard through Covid. We still 

have Incident Command set up and we are looking at putting things back as safely as we can. She 

said staff is so resilient and adaptable. They are working so well together. She said we have always 

been open with the exception of elective cases and those have resumed as well. Ms. Richardson 

said we encourage people to do everything needed to be perfectly safe. We have started person-

centered care workshops again. The Patient and Family Advisory Council met via Zoom and had 

a virtual tour of the Covid swabbing area. The Quality Safety Survey is out and results are due at 

the end of June. Ms. Richardson said every department has been doing a great job with patient 

experience and satisfaction scores and thanked staff for their hard work. Ms. Richardson said she 

has been meeting with Dr. Sowada and Mr. Jones to explore ways to bring new services to the 

community. The work is in the beginning stages with more information to come. We review 

financials daily. This has been a challenging year especially when budgeting at 90% of pre-Covid 

revenue. Mr. Phillips said Ms. Richardson worked very hard and deserves credit for getting things 

done to honor our bond covenants this year. He said that work is quite remarkable. Ms. Richardson 

reported the State of Wyoming received $1.25B and the money is not intended to replace lost 

revenue but will be used for construction. Ms. Richardson said she has created a team to focus on 

this and they are working with Ms. Krisena Marchal from the County for assistance. Our best 

guidance is to be ready with projects when it is time. Mr. Tardoni said he commends the process 

set up to vet projects. He would like to see the legislature consider the state buy lands and dedicate 

revenue to memorial hospitals to use the proceeds to fund construction. He said he would like a 

source of money that would help us for generations. Ms. Richardson said The Joint Commission 

put out a release stating they will resume their accreditation visits. Ms. Richardson said we feel 

our visit can be at any time. Ms. Kari Quickenden-Chief Clinical Officer, Dr. Kristy Nielson-Chief 

Nursing Officer, Ms. Kara Jackson-Director of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety, and Dr. 

Melinda Poyer-Chief Medical Officer, have been working with their teams to ensure we are ready. 

Ms. Richardson thanked the Board for approving the budget and said it includes a new health 

record. We have not identified which one yet. Dr. Joshua Binks, Radiation Oncology, joins us July 

1. Ms. Richardson said we installed new mammography equipment purchased by the Foundation. 

We have already received very good feedback from patients on this state-of-the-art equipment. 

Ms. Richardson said we submitted a request to present our annual report to the Board of County 

Commissioners on June 16. She will notify the Board regarding timing. The Wyoming Hospital 

Association events and meetings have been canceled. Ms. Richardson announced scholarships 

were awarded to three very worthy students to help them pursue continuing education in the 

medical field: Ms. Hanna Crockett, Ms. Aundra Drinkle and Ms. Favour Wanjoku. She 

congratulated them and said the decision was really hard because all of the applicants were very 

worthy. She wished them great success in their future. Ms. Richardson thanked staff, leaders, 

physicians, Trustees, Commissioners, and the community for their support. 

7/119



 

 

Minutes of the June 3, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Mr. Jones said the Board will continue reporting by exception.   

 

Quality Committee 
 

Dr. Sowada said she had nothing new to report at this time.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni asked Mr. Kelsey to report. Mr. Kelsey reported the Committee talked about a 

corrective action policy for review by the Board at a future meeting. They have been working on 

an introductory probationary period policy. They have been discussing extending that period for 

one year.    

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditure Requests: The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY20-54 for a 

Stryker chest compression system as presented for $48,541 that the Hospital will be reimbursed 

for by the Foundation was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. Mr. Jones 

said the Foundation has stepped up a lot, helped with grants, and their support is appreciated. He 

said the community supports the Foundation and the Foundation supports the Hospital.  

The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY20-58 for a power system for $47,193.56 as 

presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried.  

The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY20-59 for an operating table for $48,213 as 

presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. Mr. Kelsey 

commended Dr. Tony Pedri for his nice presentation to the Committee. 

 

Ms. Love said she sent out an updated narrative to the Trustees. Mr. Kelsey asked her to update 

the information with an additional section showing where we would have stood without Covid 

funds. Mr. Jones thanked Mr. Kelsey for asking for that information. 

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,256,033.44 as presented was 

made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.   

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said his comments are in the meeting packet. He shared an update provided to him 

earlier in the day.   

 

Foundation Board 

 

Mr. Jones asked Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Executive Director, to provide an update. Ms. 

Marshall said the Board met the previous week. They are not hosting a golf tournament. The Covid 

fund is approximately $31,000. Ms. Marshall said the Cruise the Drag event organized by Mr. 

Bruce Pivic and Mr. Island Richards was an overwhelming success. Ms. Marshall said the 

8/119



 

 

Minutes of the June 3, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Foundation is working on their messaging and recruiting a couple of new board members. They 

have some press releases going out soon. Ms. Marshall thanked Ms. Deb Sutton, Public Relations 

and Marketing Director, for her assistance. Mr. Jones recognized Mr. Mathey for coming up with 

the idea for donations online and said it was a great idea. Mr. Jones said it’s pretty humbling to see 

what our community has been willing to do for us. 

     

Compliance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said we are at a point where we have approved the charter and form we will be using 

in evaluations so we will move forward.  

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said we made it through all the medical staff bylaws the last time we met. There are 

some changes sent back to the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) for review. Mr. Mathey will 

attend that meeting and hopes we will be ready to present to the General Medical Staff and Board 

of Trustees after the next MEC meeting.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

There were no questions on the contract approved by the CEO since the previous meeting. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Lauridsen reported he looks forward to the next Joint Conference meeting. He said the MEC 

met and reviewed multiple policies and forms. The new supervising physician agreement is in the 

packet. Dr. Lauridsen said the General Medical Staff met and it was largely informational. He said 

he appreciates the efforts of hospital administrators and leadership. Mr. Jones thanked the medical 

staff for all they are doing.   

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Mathey said he has been working on medical staff bylaws and there is a full-blown hearing 

procedure. He does not know if they have to be coordinated. He may be speaking with Mr. Kelsey 

and Mr. Phillips on that topic. 

 

Mr. Jones thanked the Board. He said it’s hard when we can’t meet face to face but everyone has 

been working hard to continue moving forward.  

 

9/119



 

 

Minutes of the June 3, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

Mr. Mathey said he would like to commend Dr. Banu Symington. She had an article accepted for 

publication in a medical journal. She also received an award from an organization in Idaho after 

she left. He said these accomplishments need to be noted and commended. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said the Board would sign off the current call and sign on to an executive session call. 

They would return to the current open meeting call and would take action. He anticipated executive 

session would take 25 minutes. The motion to go into Executive Session was made by Mr. Kelsey; 

second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. Mr. Jones said the Board would take a 10-minute break. 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:09 PM, the Board came out of executive session and the motion to resume regular session 

was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to approve hospital privileges for healthcare professionals as discussed in executive 

session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada.   

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from May 12, 2019  

1. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Leenhapong Navaravong, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Stephanie Lyden, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

2. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Edward Gilbert, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Bruce Bray, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Dipayan Chaudhuri, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Cristina Cavazos, Tele Radiology (Vrad) 

 Dr. Marc Paul, Tele Radiology (Vrad) 

3. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 years) 

 Dr. Mary Murphy, Radiology 

4. Reappointment to AHP Staff (2 years) 

 Todd Bader, LPC, Professional Counselor (SWCS) 

5. Temporary/Emergency Privileges 

 Dr. Jason Haack, Otolaryngology 

The motion to approve the CEO to renegotiate and extend a doctor contract provided the salary is 

kept within the amount discussed in executive session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. 

Sowada. Motion carried.   

10/119



 

 

Minutes of the June 3, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:11 PM.   

 

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

11/119



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

June 15, 2020 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special meeting via 

Zoom on June 15, 2020, at 4:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Jeff Smith, Board of 

County Commissioners Liaison 

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. 

Motion carried.  

 

COVID RELIEF FUNDS FROM SLIB 

 

Mr. Jones said Ms. Richardson has some proposals and we need to be ready to act. He said it is a 

little unorthodox to do this the way we are doing this but in light of circumstances, we need to 

meet to discuss options. Ms. Richardson said we received emergency rules the legislators passed 

for application for grant funds. We have been getting a little bit of confusion on what we can apply 

for and what we can’t. She referenced information she sent to the Board regarding only eligible 

capital construction for Covid-related projects. Ms. Richardson said she met with Incident 

Command and stakeholders to ask what is the best use of funds. In talking to the Wyoming Hospital 

Association, we were given direction to apply for capital funds even though the rules say the 

money has to be expended by December 30. The CARES Act has all of the eligible information. 

Ms. Richardson reviewed the following list of projects: 

 HVAC System 

 Outpatient Lab 

 Operating Room Renovations 

 Mobile Lab Station 

 Payroll Expenses 

Ms. Richardson said we need some direction from the Board. Funds are allocated on a first-come, 

first-served basis. Mr. Jones asked if there is a priority to the list. Ms. Richardson said HVAC is 

first, Lab is second, Operating Room is third, Mobile Lab is fourth, and Payroll Expenses are fifth. 

Mr. Tardoni made it clear that the rules state capital will not be considered. He discussed the 

timelines and said not only are we told it is not allowed, it also extends past the deadline. Ms. 

Richardson said we want to show the situation and if anything changes, we are ready with approval 

to submit. Mr. Jones said his personal experience has shown things are moving quickly and things 

continue to change. Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, reviewed the projects. 

 
12/119



 

 

Minutes of the June 15, 2020 Board of Trustees Special Meeting 

Page 2 

The motion to authorize the CEO to submit the mobile lab request as discussed was made by Mr. 

Tardoni, second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried.  

 

Mr. Jones noted the emergency resolution approved by the Board is still in place and there is no 

expiration date. Mr. Kelsey asked staff to look for any project that is Covid-related that is not 

capital. Ms. Richardson asked Mr. Smith if the County plans to apply. He said he is not aware of 

any applications from the County. Mr. Mathey said he thinks we need both the Hospital and the 

County named on the applications.  

 

Mr. Mathey left the meeting at 4:43 PM. 

 

The motion to authorize the CEO to submit the Emergency Department and Triage expenses as 

discussed was made by Mr. Tardoni, second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to authorize the CEO to submit the lab renovation and addition as discussed was made 

by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

The motion to authorize the CEO to submit the operating room upgrade as discussed was made by 

Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

The motion to approve the outbreak resiliency upgrades as appropriate as discussed was made by 

Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried with Mr. Tardoni voting against.  

 

Mr. Jones noted anything under $500,000 has the go-ahead for Ms. Richardson. He reinforced she 

has to have some flexibility especially now. Ms. Richardson thanked the Board. She also thanked 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Executive Director, for doing an amazing job of getting the 

applications ready. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:58 PM.   

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

13/119



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 8028537 
Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: General - Housewide 
Reg. Standards: A-0263, A-0273, A-0283, 

A-0286, A-0297, A-0308, 
A-0309, A-0315, TJC 
LD.01.01.01, TJC LD.01.02.01, 
TJC LD.01.03.01, TJC 
LD.01.05.01, TJC LD.02.01.01, 
TJC LD.02.02.01, TJC 
LD.02.04.01, TJC LD.03.01.01, 
TJC LD.03.02.01, TJC 
LD.03.03.01, TJC LD.03.04.01, 
TJC LD.03.05.01, TJC 
LD.03.06.01, TJC LD.03.07.01, 
TJC LD.03.09.01, TJC 
LD.03.10.01, TJC PI.01.01.01, 
TJC PI.02.01.01, TJC 
PI.03.01.01 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety 
(PIPS) Plan 

Mission 
Compassionate care for every life we touch 

Vision 
To be our community's trusted healthcare leader 

Values 
Be Kind, Be Accountable, Be Respectful, Embrace Excellence, Work 

Collaboratively 

 

Introduction 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) is committed to providing compassionate, high-quality care 
with a strong culture of safety for the best patient outcomes. Our objective is to support a culture of safety for 
our patients and workers. This culture allows us to consistently identify opportunities to improve performance 
and increase safety while maintaining a commitment to responsible stewardship of resources as aligned with 
MHSC's mission, vision, values, and strategic objectives. 

MHSC defines quality as a person-centered commitment to excellence, consistently using best practice for 
performance improvement to achieve the best outcomes for our patients and community. 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/27/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8028537/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 10
1/2014/119

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT

Purpose 

Scope 

Objectives 

I. Continually design, assess, measure, analyze, document, improve, and sustain performance in all patient 
care and supportive areas 

II. Promote patient safety through effective management of identified risks and prevention of adverse events 

III. Utilize internal/external benchmarks and performance standards to measure and improve patient care 
processes 

IV. Improve the health and quality of life of our community 

Organization and Accountability 

I. The responsibilities of the Governing Body as they relate to the PIPS Plan include: 

A. Ensure quality and safety are at the core of the organization's vision 

B. Ensure quality and safety values are embedded in guiding the organization's strategic plan 

MHSC uses the following terminology interchangeably: quality improvement and performance improvement. 

The Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) plan encompasses a multidisciplinary and integrated 
approach, and is designed to include Leadership, Medical Staff, employees, and the Board of Trustees to 
collaboratively identify, plan, implement and sustain improvement. The previously identified parties assess 
processes, initiate peer review activities, and take appropriate actions that will improve the processes and/or 
systems, in an effort to improve outcomes within the organization and community. The PIPS plan is approved 
annually by the Board of Trustees. Functions of the PIPS plan include expressing the foundational concepts 
that form the basis for MHSC's performance improvement and patient safety efforts. In addition, the PIPS Plan 
outlines the structure and processes that MHSC has developed as a framework for participation in 
performance improvement across the organization. 

The PIPS Plan is organization wide and applies to all departments, care, treatment, and services settings 
(including those services furnished under contract or arrangement). This includes: Hospital Inpatient and 
Outpatient services, and Sweetwater Memorial Clinics. Hospital services and compliance with contractual and 
regulatory standards are monitored to ensure the delivery of quality service to satisfy all specified 
requirements. (Appendix 1 – FY 2021 PIPS Committee Reporting Calendar) 

The ultimate objective of the PIPS plan is to allow for a systematic, coordinated, and continuous approach for 
improving performance. (Appendix 4 – PIPS Documentation Tool) 

Goals include the following: 

The PIPS Plan shall involve the coordinated efforts of the Governing Board, Senior Leadership Team, Medical 
Staff, Department Directors, Supervisors, Clinical Coordinators, and front line staff of the various MHSC 
departments and committees. Engagement in quality improvement activities is an expectation of MHSC. 
Activities are prioritized by the PIPS Committee and Medical Staff, with input from the Quality Committee of the 
Board. 

Governing Body 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/27/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8028537/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 10
2/2015/119



DRAFT

C. Review and recommend for Board of Trustee approval 

D. Assess the effectiveness of the PIPS Plan 

E. Assure education of the members of the Board of Trustees on the methods of quality management 
and performance improvement 

F. Receive reports of indicators and performance of processes as outlined in this plan 

G. Delegate authority for data analysis, evaluation, action determination, implementation, and outcome 
evaluation to the individuals, departments, and committees as listed in this plan 

H. Receive regular reports regarding all departments with direct and indirect patient care services and 
ensure these are monitored, problems are identified and prioritized, and appropriate action is 
implemented 

I. The Senior Leadership Team is comprised of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Medical Officer 
(CMO), Chief Nursing Officer (CNO), Chief Clinical Office (CCO), and Chief Financial Officer (CFO). 

II. Oversight of a PIPS plan capable of continuous improvement is a task accomplished in an environment 
fostered by Senior Leadership support. The Senior Leadership Team's commitment includes taking 
accountability for the effectiveness of the PIPS Plan and ensuring the integration of the PIPS Plan 
requirements into organizational processes. In addition, the commitment includes recognizing the 
importance of meeting patient needs and the various requirements of statutes and regulations that 
surround and permeate the organization. 

III. The responsibilities of the Senior Leadership Team as they relate to the PIPS Plan include: 

A. Support the implementation, execution, and oversight of this quality framework 

B. Set the scope, priorities, guidelines and parameters for the PIPS Plan 

C. Align the PIPS Plan with strategic priorities 

D. Prioritize the necessary resources to implement the PIPS Plan 

E. Ensure the PIPS Plan is cohesive and feasible 

F. Communicate the PIPS Plan to workers and the community 

G. Ensure accreditation standards are adhered to 

H. Motivate and support staff to achieve PIPS objectives 

I. Monitor the effectiveness of the PIPS Plan and the achievement of results 

I. The responsibilities of the Quality Department as they relate to the PIPS Plan include: 

A. Serve as a resource for performance improvement, patient safety, patient experience, and regulatory 
information 

B. Educate MHSC staff about the performance improvement process, patient safety, and patient 
experience 

C. Support staff, including Medical Staff, Leadership, and project leaders in the development and 
implementation of performance improvement activities, including team building and data analysis 

D. Assist with and assure data gathering efforts are valid, reliable, and comprehensive 

Senior Leadership Team 

Quality Department 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/27/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8028537/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 10
3/2016/119



DRAFT

E. Attend designated Medical Staff committee meetings and facilitate performance improvement 
processes 

F. Provide quality data for assessment of Medical Staff members 

G. Promote consistency in performance improvement activities 

I. The Medical Staff provides expertise on meeting appropriate clinical goals, objectives, and initiatives for 
patient care. The responsibilities of the Medical Staff as they relate to the PIPS plan include: 

A. Provide clinical input for targets related to clinical outcomes 

B. Carry out tasks to meet the objectives of the PIPS plan 

C. Reviews reports to ensure measures are reaching agreed upon targets 

D. Act upon identified areas for improvement 

E. Provide effective mechanisms to measure, assess, and improve the quality and appropriateness of 
patient care, and the clinical performance of all individuals with delineated clinical privileges, 
accomplished through Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluations (OPPE), Focused Professional 
Practice Evaluations (FPPE), and Peer Review Process (refer to Professional Practice Review 
Process – Medical Staff Peer Review) 

I. The Leadership Team is comprised of department directors, supervisors, and clinical coordinators. The 
responsibilities of the Leadership Team as they relate to the PIPS Plan include: 

A. Utilize performance improvement processes to support MHSC's mission, vision, and values 

B. Foster a climate of continuous improvement through measurement, data analysis, and identification 
of changes needed to improve and ensure sustainment 

C. Monitor processes known to jeopardize the safety of patients 

D. Implement and maintain processes to ensure compliance with applicable requirement(s) or 
standard(s) 

E. Ensure services provided are consistent with MHSC's values and goal of consistently providing 
person-centered care 

F. Present performance improvement project updates to PIPS committee as requested 

I. The responsibilities of the Project Teams, Department Employees, and Volunteers as they relate to the 
PIPS Plan include: 

A. Performance improvement project teams may be formed according to employee identification of 
improvements and prioritization 

B. Every employee is encouraged to engage in improvement within their scope of responsibility and 
there is no need to formally declare or recognize this ongoing activity that adds to the vibrancy of our 
organization and quality of care 

C. Identify and utilize approaches for improving processes and outcomes to continuously improve the 
quality and safety of patient care 

Medical Staff 

Leadership Team 

Project Teams, Department Employees and Volunteers 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/27/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8028537/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 10
4/2017/119



DRAFT

D. Document improvement initiatives, progress, and reports to PIPS Committee as requested or 
scheduled 

I. The PIPS Committee oversees the establishment and implementation of the PIPS Plan. The core PIPS 
Committee shall be comprised of Senior Leadership, Clinic Director, Acute Care Services Director, 
Infection Prevention/Risk/Compliance Director, Surgical Services Director, Quality Department, Medical 
Imaging Director, Women's Health Director, Medical Staff Representative, Medical Staff PIPS-Quality 
Liaison, and Patient Safety Representative. Other representatives may attend based on identified 
priorities. 

A. Provide an organization wide program to systematically measure, assess, and improve the 
performance to achieve optimal patient outcomes in a collaborative, multidisciplinary, cross-
departmental approach 

B. Identify, develop, and enhance activities to promote patient safety and encourage a reduction in 
preventable harm by analyzing variations in data and implementing improvement projects or action 
plans 

C. Provide a mechanism to foster collaborative efforts for performance improvement, feedback, and 
learning throughout the organization while assigning responsibilities and authority for these 
processes 

D. Implement all Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and other regulatory bodies' 
quality management and performance improvement standards and maintain accreditation and 
required certifications 

E. Oversee compliance with accreditation standards and support resolution of noncompliance through 
action plans in coordination with Continual Survey Readiness Committee 

F. Prioritize improvement projects to address processes based on the following: 

1. Focus on high-risk, high volume, or problem prone areas 

2. Consider the incidence, prevalence, and severity of problem in those areas 

3. Affect health outcomes, patient safety, and quality of care 

4. Additional factors include: resource allocation and accreditation/regulatory requirements 

5. Utilizes a prioritization scoring tool. This will assist in determining the distinct number of 
improvement projects annually (Appendix 3 – Prioritization Matrix Assessment Tool) 

G. Ensure performance improvement projects incorporate the needs and expectations of patients and 
families 

H. Monitor the status of identified and prioritized performance improvement projects and action plans to 
assure improvement or problem resolution on a sustained basis 

I. Ensure appropriate allocation of resources to achieve successful performance improvement projects 
and sustained improvements 

J. Identify annual data elements collected on an ongoing basis to prioritize focus areas for performance 
improvement 

K. Review and approve the PIPS Plan each year prior to submitting to Quality Committee of the Board 

L. Oversee annual evaluation of performance improvement project goals 

PIPS Committee Functions 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/27/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8028537/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 10
5/2018/119



DRAFT

M. Oversee annual evaluation of PIPS Plan objectives, scope, and effectiveness, and evaluate progress 
towards strategic plan goals related to quality, safety and patient experience 

N. Communicate information concerning quality, patient safety, and patient experience to departments 
when opportunities to improve exist 

O. Report appropriate information regarding quality, patient safety, patient experience, and accreditation 
to Senior Leadership, Medical Executive Committee (MEC), Quality Committee of the Board, and the 
Board of Trustees to provide leaders with the information they need in fulfilling their responsibilities 
concerning the quality and safety of patient care 

P. Provide reports to the Quality Committee of the Board 

I. Risk Management is undertaken by the Risk and Compliance Director, along with Compliance 
Committee, in order to identify evaluate and reduce risk or loss to patients, employees, visitors, and the 
hospital. The PIPS Committee may assist with quality improvement opportunities identified for risk 
reduction and performance improvement. 

I. MHSC is committed to encouraging, promoting, and supporting a culture of safety throughout the 
organization. The purpose of the organizational Patient Safety Program is to improve patient safety and 
reduce risk to patients through an environment that encourages: 

A. Recognition and acknowledgment of risks to patients of medical/health care errors 

B. Initiation of actions to reduce these risks 

C. Internal reporting of what has been found and the actions taken 

D. Focus on processes and systems 

E. Minimization of individual blame or retribution for involvement in a medical/health care error 

F. Organizational learning about medical/health care error 

G. Support for the sharing of knowledge to effect behavioral changes in itself and other health care 
organizations 

H. Appropriate communication and transparency to our patients and families 

Methodology 

I. Performance improvement project teams will collect, analyze, document, and report improvements using 
Lean principles and methodologies (Appendix 4 – PIPS Documentation Tool) 

Data 

Risk/Compliance 

Safety 

MHSC is committed to continuous improvement of processes and outcomes. To accomplish this, the 
organization has adopted Lean as its improvement methodology. Lean is a patient centered performance 
improvement methodology and is meant to improve processes while keeping the patient at the forefront. Lean 
is based on two pillars including continuous improvement and respect for people. The ultimate goal is to 
liberate the people who do the work to make improvements. 

MHSC continually seeks to identify changes that will lead to improved quality and improved patient safety. 
Annually and coinciding with the fiscal year, each department/discipline shall develop indicators for 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/27/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8028537/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 10
6/2019/119



DRAFT

I. Frequency of data collection and reporting is determined on a case-by case basis with consideration to 
improvement priorities, sample size necessary for adequate review, and resources consideration 

II. Aggregated data are analyzed to draw conclusions about opportunities for improvement and actions to 
improve the quality of processes. When available, external benchmarks or comparative databases will be 
included. Measurement tools are utilized to measure and understand data (e.g., run charts, flow charts 
and control charts). 

III. Scope of Data Collection 

A. At a minimum, the organization will collect data required by CMS Conditions of Participation and The 
Joint Commission including measures from: 

1. Inpatient Quality Reporting 

2. Outpatient Quality Reporting 

3. Value Based Purchasing 

4. Hospital Readmission Reduction Program 

5. Hospital Acquired Condition Reduction Program 

6. Quality Payment Program – Merit Based Incentive Payment 

7. HCAHPS 

8. CMS Star Rating Program 

B. Data sources and mechanisms of identifying opportunities for improvement include, but are not 
limited to: 

1. Accreditation reports 

2. Regulatory rounds and tracers 

3. Culture of Safety survey 

4. Occurrence reports identifying patient safety concerns and trends 

5. Staff reporting safety or process concerns to their leaders 

6. RCA (Root Cause Analysis) 

7. FMEA (Failure Mode Effects Analysis) 

8. Patient complaints/grievances 

9. Selected outcome indicators (mortality, readmissions, etc.) 

10. Peer review 

11. Transfers to other facilities 

12. Changing external or internal conditions 

13. Internal audits identifying improvements opportunities 

14. Leaders identifying improvement opportunities 

15. Audit of clinical contracts 

C. Performance measures for processes that are known to jeopardize the safety of patients or 

performance improvement. Whenever possible, data collection is a shared activity involving staff. The 
collected data may be organized and analyzed with the assistance of the Quality Department, if necessary. 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/27/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8028537/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 10
7/2020/119



DRAFT

associated with sentinel events will be monitored. At a minimum, performance measures related to 
the following processes are monitored and will be further evaluated if undesirable patterns occur: 

1. Operative or other procedures that place patient at risk of disability or death 

2. All significant discrepancies between preoperative and postoperative diagnoses 

3. Blood and blood components use 

4. Restraint use 

5. Outcomes related to resuscitation 

6. Appropriateness of pain management 

7. Near miss events 

8. Rapid response to change or deterioration in a patient condition 

9. Care or services to high-risk populations (patient falls) 

10. National Patient Safety Goals 

11. Infection prevention and control 

12. CMS preventable conditions (Hospital-Acquired Conditions) 

13. Healthcare-associated infections 

14. Organ procurement effectiveness (conversion rates) 

15. AHRQ Patient Safety Indicators (PSI) 

16. ORYX core measure data 

D. Benchmarks and/or thresholds that trigger intensive assessment and evaluation are established. An 
in-depth analysis is conducted for the following when the levels of performance, patterns or trends 
vary substantially from those expected: 

1. Confirmed transfusion reactions 

2. Staffing related events 

3. MRI incidents/injuries 

4. Significant adverse drug reactions 

5. Significant medication errors 

6. Adverse events or patterns of adverse events during moderate or deep sedation and anesthesia 

7. Complications of care 

IV. Organization Dashboard 

A. Data presented on the organization dashboard is updated to reflect strategic priorities. Measures on 
the dashboard have targets, which guide an appropriate response or recognition of success 

B. Goals and benchmarks are developed in conjunction with stakeholders with attention to past 
performance and national performance data 

1. Goal: indicates target for improvement 

2. Benchmark: any value below benchmark indicates consideration for action plan or the need for 
a PI project team (based on prioritization) 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/27/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8028537/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 8 of 10
8/2021/119



DRAFT

Communication 
I. To sustain improvements, performance improvement is communicated through the following resources: 

A. Quality Committee of the Board 

B. PIPS Committee 

C. Leadership meetings 

D. Medical Staff meetings 

E. Staff meetings 

F. Department white boards, electronic communication, and communication books may be utilized to 
display results of monitoring and internal performance improvement activities 

Confidentiality 
I. WY Stat 35-2-910. Quality management function for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle 

blowing; peer. 

A. Subsection A. "Each licensee [hospital, healthcare facility and health services] shall implement a 
quality management function to evaluate and improve patient and resident care and services in 
accordance with the rules and regulations promulgated by the division. Quality management 
information relating to the evaluation or improvement of the quality of health care services is 
confidential. Any person who in good faith and within the scope of the function of a quality 
management program participate in the reporting, collection, evaluation, or use of quality 
management information or performs other functions as part of a quality management program with 
regards to a specific circumstance shall be immune from suit in any civil action based on such 
functions brought by a health care providers or person to whom the quality information pertains. In no 
event shall this immunity apply to any negligent or intention act or omission in the provision of care." 

II. All quality and patient safety data, materials, and information are private and confidential, shall be 
considered the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, and as such is protected by state 
and federal health care quality statutes. 

III. Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in keeping 
with hospital policy and state and federal regulations governing the confidentiality of quality and patient 
safety work. 

IV. Information, data results, reports and minutes generated by all quality management activities will be 
handled in a manner ensuring strict confidentiality 

V. Confidential information may include but is not limited to: Medical Staff committee minutes, organizational 
quality improvement committee minutes, electronic data gathering and reporting, and incident/occurrence 
reporting 

VI. Quality improvement activities will occur in ways that preserve confidentiality of information consistent 
with policy and established law 

References 

LRG Healthcare. (August, 2019). Quality Management Plan. Unpublished internal document, LRGHealthcare. 

Ransom Memorial Health. (March, 2019). Quality Improvement Plan. Unpublished internal document, Ransom 
Memorial Health. 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/27/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8028537/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 9 of 10
9/2022/119



DRAFT
Attachments 

No Attachments 

Whitney Matson. (N.A). Quality Management System Plan. Unpublished internal document, St. John's Health. 

Quality Assurance & Performance Improvement (QAPI). (n.d.). Retrieved from https://hsag.com/qapi 

Wyoming Laws. (2015). Title 35, Public Health and Safety. Wyoming Statute W.S. §35-2-910 (1977). 
Quality management functions for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer 
review. Retrieved from Thomson Reuters WestlawNext. 

Approval: 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Committee – May 15, 2020 

Quality Committee of the Board – May 20, 2020 

Medical Executive Committee – May 26, 2020 

Board of Trustees – 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 05/27/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8028537/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 10 of 10
10/2023/119



JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Pain Task Force 

Person Centered Care 

Antimicrobial Stewardship 

Continual Survey Readiness

Patient Safety (to include: HER Ops, Code Blue, SMPT, EOC, restraint/seclusion, suicide 

screening, 

Readmissions

CHNA 

MEDICAL STAFF COMMITTEE REPORTS

Infection Control 

Tissue and Blood 

Trauma

Radiation Safety 

Utilization Management 

WORK GROUP REPORTS 

Sepsis

ED Patient Flow 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS  - Quarterly 

Women's Health 

Medical Surgical 

ICU

ED

Surgical Services 

Medical Imaging 

Clinic 

Radiation Oncology/Medical Oncology 

Outpatient Infusion 

Rehab Services 

Cardiopulmonary 

FACILITY WIDE REPORTS 

Donor Connect 

Patient Experience/HCAHPS Dashboards 

MHSC Organization Dashboard 

Hospital Compare Preview Reports 

FY 2021 MHSC Quality Committee of Board Reporting Schedule 

Monthly Meeting: Second (2nd) Tuesday of the Month, 1:00 p.m. - 2:30 p.m., Classrooms 1-3

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

11/2024/119



Quality Reporting Program Results (HRRP, HACRP, VBP, QPP - Annually)

Culture of Safety Survey Results 

Audit of Peer Review and OPPE/FPPE

Audit of Credentialing Process 

Audit of Clinical Contract Quality Review 

Accreditation Reports 

FMEA, RCA, Serious Safety Events 

PLAN APPROVAL (Annual)

PIPS Plan

12/2025/119



Department/Unit:

An opportunity exists for the quality monitoring of:
(name of your indicator)

It is important to monitor this because it is a: 
(select all that apply)

___ In-Process/Quality Assurance Measure
___ Performance Improvement Measure 
___ Regulatory Measure of Success 
___ Regulatory Requirement
___ Strategic Plan - Goals & Objectives
___ High Risk 
___ Problem Prone 
___ High Volume

The Performance Indicator will be monitored beginning:  
(MM/DD/YY)

The data sources will be: ___ Audit
___ Chart Review 
___ Database
___ Observation 
___ Patient Questioned 
___ Staff Demo 
___ Other (indicate below)

The frequency the data will be collected will be: Monthly and reported quarterly to the Performance 
Improvement Committee

The data will be collected by:

The sample size will be:

The numerator will be:

The denominator will be:

Less than, equal to, or greater than

Target (benchmark) Goal

Stretch Goal

Number, Percentage, or Percentile

The Source of comparative/benchmark data is:

Submitted by:

Date:

The Goal for Performance will be (choose one item in each row):

Measure Development Tool 
Step 1 - Measure Development Tool 

Quality Materials - Confidential
13/2026/119



-
Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

0 4
0 10
0 40% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

 % -Target Goal 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00%
 % -Stretch Goal 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Short Note to be included on the graph (optional)

Number of Periods 13

Quality Materials - Confidential
14/2027/119



-

0
0
0

 % -Target Goal
 % -Stretch Goal
Short Note to be included on the graph (optional)

Number of Periods

Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20

#DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Quality Materials - Confidential
15/2028/119



0.4

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20

-
 % -Target Goal 0  % -Stretch Goal

16/2029/119



Department: Which department is responsible, 
can be interdisciplinary

Report Submitted by: Team lead/person 
responsible for this project

Problem Statement: What led you to 
discover the problem

We have high rates of CAUTIs

Stakeholders/Scope Consider patient population and departments 
impacted 

Current State: Please provide a description 
of the current process

Problem Analysis: 5 Why’s, ask why until you reach 
an actionable statement

We lack a nurse-driven protocol, it's not addressed in MDR, need further 
education

Target Condition: In your perfect world, 
what would this process look like?

We would limit the use of catheters via clinical decision support tools, we 
would have a nurse-driven protocol for removal, more education on 
potential effects of catheter use 

Counter Measures:

List measures that can be taken 
to counter your actionable items 

found in the problem analysis 
Continue to next tab to further detail 

plans for counter measure

Develop nurse-driven protocol, provide more education, incorporate into 
MDR

Performance Improvement Development Tool 

Quality Materials - Confidential
17/2030/119



1

Detailed Steps Evaluation

  Evaluate Counter Measure Action 
Plan:

1. Successful
2. Needs action/adjustment 

3. Not sustainable
4. To Be Determined

Start/End Dates of testWho is Responsible

Counter Measure Implementation

Determination of Success 

Identify how it will be determined 
that the plan of action is not 

producing desired results and 
pursuit should be abandoned or 

plan modified:
1. stakeholder harm/dissatisfaction 

is identified
2. Performance measures do not 

approach goal/benchmark after __ 
months/quarters (indicator # of 

quarters) 

Length of time to trial 
improvement/intervention

Sustainment

If successful, how will you 
measure/monitor for sustainment?

Counter Measure

What will be done

Explain what will be done, 
resources needed (skills training, 
staff education, support services, 

technology, etc.)

Who will do it? 

Quality Materials - Confidential

18/2031/119



Quality Materials – Confidential  

Date:       Name:       Department:      

Scope:       Regulatory Requirement OR Serious safety events (circle either when applicable)  

Description of Concerns/ Ideas for improvement:  

Please fill out the following Prioritization Matrix Tool to assess the level of priority. 

Questions  to Generate PN (Prioritization Number)                                                                                     Score               Rating Scale  

   
   

   
  P

eo
p

le
/S

er
vi

ce
 

Likelihood of occurrence or reoccurrence?   0=None or N/A 
1= Not Likely  
2=Likely 
3=Very Likely 

Likelihood of detection by employees, staff, and/or organization?   0=None or N/A 
1= Not Likely  
2=Likely 
3=Very Likely 

Amount of effort required to correct/address identified concern?   0=None or N/A 
1=Minimal effort 
2=Moderate effort 
3=Significant effort 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 Q

u
al

it
y/

Sa
fe

ty
 What is the severity, potential of harm, or level of harm that may reach patients, 

employees, and/or facility if left untreated?  

 0=None or N/A 
1=Minor injury/harm/potential 
2=Moderate injury/harm/potential 
3=Serious injury/harm/potential 

Pervasiveness of the issue/concern throughout the organization   0=None or N/A 
1=limited (isolated to one unit/department) 
2=patterned (isolated to one service line/multiple 
units/or multiple units in as isolated area 
3=Widespread (exists on multiple units and services)  

What is the significance to the affected party (patients, employees, and/or the 
facility)?  

 0=None or N/A 
1=Insignificant 
2=Significant 
3=Critical importance 

   
   

   
 F

in
an

ce
/G

ro
w

th
 

What is the anticipated dollar cost, to correct/address the issue?   0=None or N/A 
1=Minor cost (<$10000) 
2=Moderate cost 
3=Significant cost (>$150000) 

What is the anticipated dollar cost to the facility if left untreated?   0=None or N/A 
1=Minor cost (<$10000) 
2=Moderate cost 
3=Significant cost (>$150000) 

Amount of resources (equipment, hardware, software, infrastructure, etc.) required to 
correct/address identified concern?  

 0=None or N/A 
1=Minimal/no resources 
2=Moderate amount of resources  
3= Substantial amount of resources  

19/2032/119



Quality Materials – Confidential  

PN Score:  
 

Estimated Effort to Implement: (circle either one)  Low   Med   High    

Approximate completion Date:  

Estimated time to complete (months):  

 

 

 

(For PIPS committee use only) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PIPS Committee Decision Notes:  

 

Formed Project Team and Initiated Improvement Project:  

Revisit________ (explain reason why) 

 

Scoring Guide 

 If score is greater than 21, form project team 

If score is between 8-21, committee discussion and evaluate resource allocation  

If score is less than 8, table until resources are available 

20/2033/119



Compliance Committee Charter Page 1 
 

Board Charter: The Compliance Committee  

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committees & Committee Charters 
Title: Compliance Committee 
Original adoption: 7/4/2018 
Revision: 7/25/2018; 1/29/2020; 4/1/2020; _________ 
 
            
   
  

Purpose: 
 
The purpose of the committee is to assist the Board of Trustees (Board) in discharging 
its fiduciary and oversight duties in respect to ensuring the compliance activities of 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) are vigorous, appropriate and 
continuous.  

Authority: 

The Committee has no expressed or implied power or authority. 

Responsibilities: 
 
In fulfilling its charge, the Compliance Committee is responsible for the following 
activities and functions:  

1. Oversee the Hospital’s compliance program and monitor its performance. 
2. Make recommendations to the Board regarding compliance practices. 
3. Ensure the Board is aware of significant compliance issues. 
4. Review compliance risk areas and the steps the Hospital has taken to assess, 

control, and report such compliance risk exposures. 
5. Review monthly reports of compliance audits to assess the appropriateness 

of audit activity. 
6. Ensure the Hospital has all applicable policies related to compliance with 

state and federal regulations. 
 
Composition: 
 
The Compliance Committee shall consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of whom 
shall function as chairperson, the Chief Executive Officer, General Legal Counsel/In-
House Counsel, and Compliance Officer serve as voting members. The Compliance 
Auditor shall serve as a non-voting member. 

34/119



Compliance Committee Charter Page 2 
 

 
Meeting Schedule: 
 
The committee shall meet monthly, or as needed. 
 

Reports: 
 
Annual work plan 
Audits and monitoring per annual workplan     
Monthly HIPPA monitoring                             
Monthly behavior health documentation 
As occur, external c/o or investigations e.g. OSHA, CMS 
As occur, identified risk and response to potentially illegal or inappropriate activity 
Others, as needed 

 

35/119



COPY

Current Status: Active PolicyStat ID: 5095637 

Approved: 07/2018 
Review Due: 07/2021 
Document Area: Employee Policies 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - EMPLOYEE CORRECTIVE 
ACTION 

Purpose 

Policy 
I. The employee will be informed if corrective action is necessary as soon as possible after any 

performance problem has been identified. 

A. The employee's leader will discuss the situation with the employee, explaining the policy and the
necessity of corrective action to avoid other disciplinary actions. 

B. Although one or more corrective action measure may be taken in connection with a particular
performance problem, no formal order will be followed. Corrective action may include any of a 
variety of actions depending on the circumstances and severity of the particular situation. 

C. Corrective actions may be taken at the discretion of management and include any of the following in 
any order:

1. Counseling with employee, which will be confirmed in writing by the employee's leader and 
placed in the employee's personnel file.

2. Verbal warning, which will be placed in the employee's file.

3. Written warning, which will be placed in the employee's file.

4. Final written warning, which will be placed in the employee's file.

5. Disciplinary suspension, which will be confirmed in writing and placed in the employee's 
personnel file. Suspension is normally used to remove an employee from hospital premises 
during an investigation or as a disciplinary action. This may be paid or unpaid.

6. Termination proceedings shall be handled in accordance with the Hospital's Termination and 
Appeal policy. 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) has high performance expectations because we strongly 
believe that everyone benefits when we all work together and conduct ourselves in a manner that mutually 
reflects the best interests of co-workers and the hospital. It is the philosophy of Memorial Hospital of 
Sweetwater County to take corrective action measures when needed for the purpose of correcting areas of 
performance deficiency or to deal with violations of polices and work rules. The purpose of corrective action is 
to both correct the situation and to avoid repetition. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - EMPLOYEE CORRECTIVE ACTION. Retrieved 03/02/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/5095637/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 2
36/119

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



COPY

D. The corrective action process will not always commence with a counseling or include every step. The
above options are not to be seen as a process in which one step always follows another.

1. Some acts, particularly those that are intentional or serious, warrant more severe action on the
first or subsequent offense.

2. An employee at a written warning or higher may be ineligible for pay increases and any
additional compensation.

3. Consideration will be given to the seriousness of the offense, your intent and motivation to
change the performance, and the environment in which the offense took place.

Approved: Board 6.6.18 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

Approval Signatures 

Approver Date 

Kristy Nielson: Chief Nursing Officer 07/2018 

Irene Richardson: CEO 07/2018 

Amber Fisk: HR Director 06/2018 

Suzan Campbell: In House Legal Counsel [RF] 06/2018 

Link to Form # 802452 Counseling and Corrective Action Form http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/
policy/2632825/latest/ 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES - EMPLOYEE CORRECTIVE ACTION. Retrieved 03/02/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/5095637/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 2
37/119



         PolicyStat ID: 5208211 
 
 
EMPLOYEE POLICIES—INTRODUCTORY PERIOD 
 
 Purpose 
All employees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC), whether a new hire, 
transferred into another position, or promoted into another position, must serve an 
introductory period as set forth below. 
 
Policy 

I. Introductory Period 
A. This introductory period is an extension of the employee hiring process. 

 
B.  Introductory period employees are at-will employees as defined in the 

Hospital’s Termination and Appeal policy. 
 

C.  During this period, the employee is considered to be in training and under 
observation and evaluation by supervisors, team leaders, and others. 

 
D. Evaluation of the employee’s adjustment to work tasks, conduct with others, 

work rules, attendance and discharge of job responsibilities will be conducted 
during the introductory period. 

 
E. This period gives the employee an opportunity to demonstrate satisfactory 

performance for the position and also provides an opportunity to see if the 
employee’s abilities and the requirements of the position match. It is also a  
chance to see if the Hospital meets the expectations of the employee. 

 
F.  Employee performance will be evaluated at the end of the introductory period 

and a decision about the status of that employee will be made. 
 
 

G.  The length of the introductory period shall be as follows: 
a. For newly-hired employees, the introductory period shall be for one year. 

Moreover, all employees shall serve at least one year in the introductory 
period. 

b. Current employees who transfer into or who are promoted into another 
position shall serve a minimum of ninety (90) calendar days in an 
introductory period associated with their new position. (An employee may 
need to serve more than ninety (90) days in the introductory period 
associated with their new position in order to serve, in total, a minimum 
period of one year in an introductory period. 

38/119



 

  Page 1 of 2 

Confidential   6/28/2020 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

June 17, 2020 

 
  

Present:  Dr. Barbara Sowada, Irene Richardson, Kara Jackson, Melissa Anderson, Dr. Kristy 

Nielson, Karali Plonsky, Leslie Taylor, Tami Love, Kari Quickenden, Dr. Melinda Poyer, Dr. 

Banu Symington, Marty Kelsey, Ann Clevenger 

Absent/Excused:  Dr. Cielette Karn,   

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada   

 

Introduction 

Dr. Nielson introduced Ann Clevenger a nursing instructor at WWCC and former MHSC employee. 

Ann is here to introduce her project related to HCAPS statistics and results. 
 

Mission Moment 

Dr. Sowada gave the mission moment this morning, complimenting MHSC on all the “highlights of 

the year”, as presented to the County Commissioners by Ms. Richardson yesterday. It was an 

amazing list of accomplishments. 
 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Dr. Sowada presented the Agenda for approval. Dr. Symington motioned to approve, Ms. Taylor 

seconded. Dr. Sowada questioned where the New Safety Report from Ms. Stevie Nosich compiled 

should be located, as the information came in late and was not included in the original Quality 

Committee packet. Ms. Jackson noted it should be included in the Risk, Safety, and Grievance 

Dashboard reports, therefore a part of the Consent Agenda. Agenda was unanimously approved. 

Dr. Sowada next presented the May 20, 2020 Quality Committee Minutes for approval. Dr. 

Symington motioned to approve, Ms. Richardson seconded the motion. With no further discussion 

the Minutes were unanimously approved. 
 

Old Business 

Dr. Nielson and Ms. Anderson presented the ED Survey Data. Dr. Nielson provided background into 

this initiative. Last October a group from U of U was here, during the meeting they talked about 

CMS reports and median points and that there was a group gathering additional data to submit. 

Our time was short and we gathered what we could, sent it to U of U, who sent it in and analyzed 

the data. We have reviewed and worked to learn how to gather the median data. Ms. Doreen 

Peretti and Ms. Jodi Corley will be going into our system to update the median points. We see 

fluctuations in statistics but hopefully with the medians we can drill down into the information.  
 

New Business 

Ms. Clevenger presented her Doctor of Nursing Practice (DNP) Project. Ms. Clevenger Identified 

nursing education HCAHPS scores didn’t demonstrate the work nurses are doing in education. The 

perception is nurses are lacking in communication. The project is based on methodology and 

design of a nurse’s theory – the nurse interacts with the patient to educate, so they can better 

learn about their diagnosis and medications.  She noted she will start with learning the barriers for 

nurses in the teach back method. As a pilot study it could help with patient satisfaction and value 

based purchasing.  
 

Ms. Jackson stated the Continual Readiness survey has been meeting through ZOOM. Ms. Jackson 

announced that The Joint Commission (TJC) will be resuming surveys in June. Wyoming and a few 

 

39/119



 

  Page 2 of 2 

Confidential   6/28/2020 

other states are likely to be first on the list, due to our low COVID 19 rates. We are ramping up for 

our survey with continual tracers. Next week we will be starting a project “Joint Sweep” where we 

disseminate information to staff about what TJC will be looking for. This idea came from Ms. Plonsky 

and a former facility where she had worked. 
 

Ms. Jackson next spoke to the Quality Report Program: Star-rating, Value Based Purchasing, and 

Reduction programs.  She gave a brief overview of the programs, their statistics and historical or 

expected reimbursements. Ms. Jackson further reviewed our statistics and data points. Dr. Sowada 

questioned when we would know updates on the Star-ratings. Ms. Jackson stated currently, we 

are unsure of the date: July’s update has been postponed. 
 

Dr. Symington presented “Could it Happen Here?” – Medical Overuse. She reviewed a short list of 

good intentions that became overused medical procedures. Dr. Nielson noted this was part of the 

“Choosing Wisely” program that Dr. Symington has been part of. Surveys have shown that more 

treatments and more invasive tests are not always better for patient outcomes. Dr. Sowada noted 

in past we have had concerns with call-backs for diagnostic mammography and questioned 

should this be a quality indicator for us? Dr. Quickenden noted since that concern came up 

investigation has been done and a significant decrease has been shown. Prior we had a 

“revolving door” of radiologists, but stabilization of our radiologists has helped. 
 

Medical Staff Update 

Dr. Poyer gave the Medical Staff Update in Dr. Karn’s absence.  Our physicians are meeting twice 

a week for COVID updates. COVID testing is in place for all patients receiving procedures at 

MHSC. They continue to meet through Incident Command to do the best for patients and staff. Dr. 

Poyer noted they are working with a medical illness we only have a few months of knowledge 

about, instead of the years and decades of knowledge they usually work with. 
 

Consent Agenda  

Dr. Sowada introduced the Consent Agenda and requested pull outs. Dr. Sowada noted she had 

2 pull outs on pages 108, 119. Page 108 the Return to Surgery data – Ms. Jackson stated all 

information on return to surgery patients was sent to Alisha Mackie, Surgical Services Director and 

Jennifer Rogers, Clinical Coordinator for review. The review came back as expected outcomes for 

return to surgery. Page 119 – Dr. Sowada congratulated the Med/Surg staff on their numbers. In 

fact ED, OB and Med/Surg have all made giant strides in improvement in just the last 3 months.  

Ms. Plosky noted in July we will be moving to Press Ganey for statistics and we are not yet sure how 

our reports and points will look, but expect by September we should have a better handle on it.  
 

Closing 

Dr. Sowada prepared to close the meeting, noting we may be meeting by ZOOM again in July. 

Ms. Richardson closed with compliments to staff on the continued good work, especially during 

these difficult times. 
 

Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 9:34 am 

 

Next Meeting    July 15, 2019 at 08:15 am, CR 1 & 2 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

40/119



Quality Committee 
Consent Agenda Quality Summary 

June 2020 

 

Four Priority/Focus Areas (Bolded in Summary Below) 

1. ED Patient Flow 
2. HCAHPS/Patient Experience 
3. Sepsis  
4. Hand Off  

 
1) Star Rating 

a. There are seven categories within the Star Rating and they are as follows: mortality, 
readmission, safety of care, efficient use of medical imaging, timeliness of care, patient 
experience (see next bullet) and effectiveness of care. Each of these seven categories 
contain several data metrics. Data within the following categories continues to trend in 
right direction: mortality, safety of care, and readmission. Opportunities for improvement 
exist within the efficient use of medical imaging category. OP – 8: MRI Lumbar Spine 
for Low Back Pain measure and OP-10 Abdomen CT with and without Contrast – Please 
see “Quality Reporting Programs Report” under New Business.  

b. Within the Timeliness of Care category, Ed-2b: ED Median Admit Decision Time to 

ED Departure Time is trending in the right direction and the goal has been met. A new 
goal was created by this project improvement team, and includes continuing to decrease 
the data from average of 120 minutes to 100 minutes. The team realizes their data has 
trended up for the last few months, and has been affected by COVID 19 and will continue 
to work diligently to improve the process and continue to decrease this time. For more 
information, please see ED Survey Data Reports and presentation from Dr. Nielsen and 
Melissa Anderson. Within the Effectiveness of Care category, we are seeing fluctuations 
with the data for Core Sep1 – Early Management Bundle, Severe Sepsis/Septic Shock. 

More updates on sepsis will be available next month. We continue to monitor data for 
Core Op - 29 Colonoscopy-follow up for average risk patients to ensure sustainment of 
improvement. Core OP-23 – Head CT/MRI Results for Stroke Pts within 45 minutes of 
Arrival data has decreased over the past few months. A team has evaluated this data and 
is working with ED physicians, Radiologists, ED Department and Medical Imaging 
Department to review current process, identify any barriers, and work on improvements.  

c. Patient Experience-HCAHPS: The “Overall Inpatient HCAHPS Dashboard” is the 

survey data that affects our Star Rating and Value Based Purchasing reimbursement 
program. This survey includes OB, ICU, and Med-Surg.  

i. Data for Overall Quality of Care by Department 
1. ED 

a. Goal 42.2%  
b. Q1 2020 – 47.3%  

i. This is the highest score seen in the last several years.  

41/119



c. Q2 2020* - 36.1% 
2. ICU 

a. Goal 59%  
b. Q1 2020 – 66.7% 
c. Q2 2020* – 60% 

3. Med/Surg 
a. Goal 60.6% 
b. Q1 2020 - 48.6% 
c. Q2 2020* – 75% 

i. This is the highest score seen in the last several years.  
4. OB  

a. Goal 71.9% 
b. Q1 2020 – 88% 

i. This is the highest score seen in the last several years.  
c. Q2 2020 – 70.6% 

5. Surgery:  
a. Goal 73.1%  
b. Q1 2020 – 65.4% 
c. Q2 2020* – 67.7% 

ii. *data not yet complete 
2) Risk/Safety 

a. Occurrence reports 
i. There were a few more Midas reports in May (33) compared to March (23) and 

April (28).   
ii. Falls there were 2 in early May, no injury reported with the falls. 

iii. Nothing trending with Medication errors. 
b. Grievances are trending to physician’s behavior in the ED.  This has gone to committee 

and appropriate steps are being taken to rectify issues.  
c. Safety – An interdisciplinary team is working to create a new safety committee. 

Discussions are taking plan as to what the safety committee will address in terms of data 
and subcommittees reporting into the safety committee, and a patient safety plan is also 
being written for our organization. More updates to come.  

3)  PI Standards 
a. Our PI Standards within the dashboard include data metrics defined by Centers for 

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and The Joint Commission (TJC), as well as 
priorities identified by MHSC on the Quality Assessment Performance Improvement 
(QAPI) plan. Please see additional information below.  

i. Inpatient Return to Surgery is 16.66%. This represents two patients and the these 
charts are being reviewed by the Director and Clinical Coordinator of Surgical 
Services.  

4) Accreditation 
a. We are currently in our Joint Commission triennial survey window. Joint Commission 

has resumed surveys with some changes to the survey process due to COVID 19. We 
anticipate we will be surveyed sooner, rather than later, due to our limited number of 
cases in our county and restrictions being lifted. Our CSR Committee has had a few 
meetings and we reviewed our first Joint Commission Chapter. There are a few standards 
that need work to come into compliance and this work is underway. We will review a 

42/119



chapter during each meeting and we have scheduled meetings every 2 weeks to prepare 
for survey.  Tracers are completed each week. “Joint Points” will be sent out hospital 

wide three days a week and is starting in the next 2 weeks. These will include tips and 
reminders about Joint Commission Standards and will also be reviewed with staff on 
rounds.  

 

 

43/119



HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD 

 JUNE 2020  

 Ed Tardoni 

 

The Human Resources Committee met in a Zoom format this month.  The committee approved revisions 

to two policies that are included in this month’s Board packet.  In addition, the group discussed two 

topics from a list of eight submitted for consideration by Marty Kelsy. 

The first topic discussed was appointment authority.  Who is authorized to take these actions?  One area 

was found to be vague and that was the appointment of mid-level providers.  Hospital staff will examine 

the issue and bring a written clarification to the next meeting of the committee. 

The second topic discussed was the setting of initial salaries and wages.  This topic was fully reviewed 

and all related questions satisfied. 

 Suzan Campbell has submitted a list of policies that are due for yearly review.  She has some proposed 

wording modifications to them.  The group decided to take them up in the order shown on the list. 

The path forward for the committee will be to take up two of the policy reviews and two of the 

discussion topics at each of the future meetings. 

 

 

 

44/119



45
/1

19



46
/1

19



47
/1

19



48
/1

19



49
/1

19



50
/1

19



51
/1

19



52
/1

19



53
/1

19



54
/1

19



55
/1

19



56
/1

19



57
/1

19



58
/1

19



59
/1

19



60
/1

19



61
/1

19



62
/1

19



63
/1

19



64
/1

19



65
/1

19



66
/1

19



67
/1

19



68
/1

19



69
/1

19



70
/1

19



71
/1

19



72
/1

19



73
/1

19



74
/1

19



75
/1

19



76
/1

19



77
/1

19



78
/1

19



79
/1

19



80
/1

19



81
/1

19



82
/1

19



83
/1

19



84
/1

19



85
/1

19



86
/1

19



87
/1

19



88
/1

19



89
/1

19



90
/1

19



91
/1

19



92
/1

19



93
/1

19



94
/1

19



95
/1

19



96
/1

19



97
/1

19



BUILDING AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD 

 JUNE 2020  

 Ed Tardoni 

 

The B&G Committee held a Zoom meeting in June.  Jake Blevins of ST&B provided a Central Plant update 

Maintenance Metrics 

The metrics remain within normal ranges. 

CENTRAL PLANT 

This project continues to run behind schedule.  Completion is now projected for mid-July.  A potential, 

but not yet submitted, change order in the neighborhood of $30,000 was discussed.  This relates to the 

cooling tower and involves the structural support and piping.  The support columns are long and allow 

the tower to move in the wind.  That is an objectionable situation and some form of cross bracing is the 

typical solution to such an issue.  The piping issue relates to the need to install additional pipe supports 

under a long run of pipe that extends from the tower into the building.  Engineering is underway on 

both of these issues. 

 

 

 

 

98/119



 

  Page 1 of 2 

Confidential   6/29/2020 

Board Compliance Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

June 24th, 2020 

 
  

Present via Zoom: Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell, Barbara Sowada, Ed Tardoni, Noreen Hove, April Prado   
     

Minutes 
 

The meeting was called to order at 1:00p.m. by Barbara Sowada. 
 
Two “Mission Moments” were shared. The first was by Irene and she spoke about the care kits that each 
employee received. The kits included a mask, sanitizer, hand soap, and chocolate. The employees have definitely 
appreciated this gift. The second moment was shared by Ed and he stated that he and his wife were talking to 
their mail lady, and she said that she had to come to the ER a few weeks ago and it was the fastest she has ever 
been in and out of the ER. She told him that it was great all around.  
 
The agenda and meeting minutes from were approved as written.  

 

Old Business 
1. Update on the Compliance Plan- Noreen Hove  

It was discussed that Suzan is working on a new Code of Conduct policy to be added to this plan. When that policy 
is complete, it was decided that this committee should be the first one to see it and then the Human Resources 
Committee. Noreen will add a link to the Compliance Plan that will include the new Code of Conduct policy when 
it is finished. Barbara asked if the Grievance Committee needed to be mentioned in the composition of the 
Compliance Committee (top of pg. 3). After further discussion it was decided that they did not need to be 
mentioned given the current work plan. Barbara questioned vendors being left out of Section 10. Discussion 
included the need to add vendors with the already stated employees. Noreen will add vendors to this as well as a 
link to the current vendor policy. Barbara asked when this policy had been originally approved and continued 
about the need of original approval dates being on ALL policies. Noreen stated that dates do exist in PolicyStat-this 
one was originally approved in 2015. Ed brought up that not everyone is going to have access to PolicyStat to view 
dates when they are reviewing documents and the dates are important. Dates will be included on documents 
moving forward.   

 

New Business 
1. Compliance Work Plan 2020- Noreen Hove 

Noreen discussed that the plan was changed to fiscal year 2020-2021 instead of calendar year 2020. This was done 
due to COVID-19 and staff changes. The red items were updates to the plan made by Noreen and April. Dates 
were again discussed and it was decided that printed copies need dates on them so everyone knows what version 
they are looking at. Noreen will look back for the dates and will add them to the Compliance Plan. The committee 
voted and approved the use dates on these documents. Dates will include, the original date that it was approved 
and the date that any revisions have been made. Barbara stated that the top of pg. 17 needs to be changed to 
reflect that we are bringing the work forward into FY 2021. Noreen will change that paragraph as requested. 
Noreen discussed that she found the checklist mentioned in #1 (Identifying Compliance Risk Areas) and that 
herself and April will be going over this and will comprise a report for the meeting next month. Noreen also 
reported that Rich in IT did bring her the departments steps on #4 (New Software Implementation). This will be 
recorded as done on 06/24/2020. Noreen also reported on #6 (HIPAA Privacy & Security Regulations), this one is 
currently on-hold as we cannot get a willing third party to come in given the current pandemic. The committee 

 

99/119



 

  Page 2 of 2 

Confidential   6/29/2020 

would like the Compliance Plan brought to next months meeting with the noted corrections made. Noreen will do 
this. 

2. Revised Compliance Charter- Barbara Sowada  
Barbara reported that changes had been made in the composition; Suzan’s title had been changed and April was 
added as a non-voting member. Discussion about reports being a little deeper or being removed completely from 
this charter given that “they now know what they want to see”. A motion was made by Noreen to approve the 
charter and was seconded by Irene. The charter was unanimously approved with no discussion.  
 

Reports  
 Behavioral Health- 7 patients for the month of May with no fall-outs. 
 HIPAA- No violations in May. 

Grievances- All have been resolved in the appropriate time. Complaints are now in yellow and do not 
count as grievances.  
  

Additional Discussion 
Suzan brought up the Grievance Policy as it appeared on the agenda. Barbara stated that it was an error as this is 
an in-house policy and this committee does not need to see it. 

 
 

Adjournment  The meeting adjourned at 1:44p.m. 

 

Next Meeting  July 22nd, 2020 at 2:00p.m.  
 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

         April Prado, Recording Secretary 

 

100/119



Contract Check List 

 

This check list summarizes the purpose, cost and other contract provisions 

contained in the contract and assures that the contract has been reviewed by 

both the CEO and In-House Legal Counsel. 

1. Name of Contract:  AMBULANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN MHSC AND 

SWEETWATER MEDICS 

 

2. Purpose of contract, including scope and description:  CONTRACT FOR 

SWEETWATER MEDICS TO PROVIDE TRANSPORT SERVICES OF 

BEHAVIORIAL HEALTH PATIENTS AND ANY OTHER PATIENT WHO 

REQUIRES AMBULANCE TRANSPORT FOR WHICH MHSC IS FINANCIALLY 

RESPONSIBLE.   

 

3. Effective Date:  JULY 1, 2020 

   

4. Expiration Date: JUNE 30, 2021 

  

5.  Termination provisions:      30 DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE BY EITHER PARTY                          

Is this auto-renew? NO 

6.   Monetary cost of the contract:  $18.00/MILE – TOTAL COST WILL DEPEND 

ON PATIENT VOLUMES.  FY2020 = $10,108.00, FY2019 = $48,906.   

7.  Jurisdiction/Choice of Law provision checked and changed to Wyoming if 

able to so.  WYOMING  

8.   Any confidentiality provisions? NO 

9.  Indemnification clause present?  NO 

10.   Is this contract appropriate for other bids?   NO 

11.    Is County Attorney review required?  NO 

101/119



AMBULANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

AND SWEETWATER MEDICS, LLC 

THIS AGREEMENT is made July _____ , 2020 by and between Memorial Hospital of 
Sweetwater County (hereinafter MHSC) and Sweetwater Medics, LLC hereinafter Sweetwater 
Medics).  This Agreement shall be effective for a period of one (1) year beginning July 1, 2020 
and ending June 30, 2021. This beginning date is the Effective Date.  
 

Section One: Recitals  
 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County requires ambulance services for the purposes of 
transporting patients, 
 
Sweetwater Medics is in the business of providing ambulance transportation services and 
possesses the necessary personnel and equipment to provide advanced life support services.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
 

Section Two: Sweetwater Medics Responsibilities 

1.  Sweetwater Medics shall respond to all requests for ambulance service for the purpose s of 

transporting Hospital patients following hospitalization at MHSC when ambulance transport is 

deemed medically necessary by the discharging physician. Sweetwater Medics shall coordinate 

with discharging planners and other discharging personnel to schedule appropriate 

transportation as deemed medically necessary. In the case of emergency transfers, Sweetwater 

Medics shall classify the transport emergent and respond to the request as soon as possible. 

Weather, road conditions, patient acuity and all other safety measures shall be considered and 

discussed with the discharging physician to ensure crew and patient safety.  

2.  Should an emergent transport need to be delayed due to safety considerations or because 

patient acuity is determined non-emergent, the transport of the patient shall take place as soon 

as reasonable for patient and crew safety and patient needs.   

3.  Unless otherwise specifically requested by patient, Sweetwater Medics shall be the 

ambulance provider to respond to all request for ambulance service for transporting MHSC 

patients requiring ambulance transportation from MHSC to another facility.  In the event of a 

mass disaster or high call volumes, other ambulance services may respond as per mutual aid 

agreements between Sweetwater Medics and other agencies.   

4. Sweetwater Medics shall reserve the right to bill the patient’s insurance provider for 

transportation services when applicable.  

5.  Sweetwater Medics shall comply with all HIPAA Guidelines, federal, state and local laws, 

rules and regulations governing the provision of ambulance services in accordance with this 

Agreement.  

Section Three: MHSC Responsibilities 

1. MHSC staff shall request ambulance response from Sweetwater Medics for all ambulance 

service requirements needed by patients of MHSC.  

It is the responsibility of MHSC to transport the following patients:  

102/119



a.  Behavioral health patients requiring transport to a facility that delivers behavioral 

health services not available at MHSC.  

b. Any other patients, as determined by MHSC administration, who require ambulance 

transportation and it has been determined that the financial responsibility for the 

ambulance transportation is the responsibility of MHSC.  

2.  Requests for  ambulance transport services from MHSC shall be requested by CEO, CNO,  

House Supervisor or other MHSC staff given authority to request transport services.   

 

Section Four: Payment Terms   

Whenever MHSC is the party that is financially responsible for the transportation costs of 

a patient, MHSC shall pay Sweetwater Medics Eighteen Dollars ($18.00) per loaded mile for 

each transport trip from MHSC to any other facility when such transport is not reimbursable 

under Medicare, Medicaid or other health insurance provider.   

 

Section Five: Term of Agreement  

This Agreement shall be in effect July 1, 2020 and shall be for a term of one (1) year. This 

agreement shall expire June 30, 2021.   

Either party may terminate this Agreement by thirty-(30) day written notice.    

 

Section Six: General Terms  

1.  Absence of Waiver.  The failure of any of the parties to this Agreement to insist upon the 

performance of any of the terms and conditions if this Agreement or the waiver of any breach of 

any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be construed as having waived all 

terms and conditions, but the terms and conditions shall continue and remain in full force and 

effect as if no such forbearance or waiver had occurred.   

2. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 

of Wyoming.  

3.  This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties and any prior 

understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be 

binding on any party except to the extent incorporated into this Agreement.  

4.  Any modification of this Agreement or additional obligations assumed by either party in 

connection with this Agreement shall be binding only if evidenced in writing signed by each 

party or an authorized representative of each party.  

5. The rights of each party under this Agreement are personal to that party and may not be 

assigned or transferred to any other person, firm, corporation or other entity without the prior, 

express written consent of the other party.  

103/119



6.  The partial invalidity of any portion of this Agreement will not and shall not be deemed to 

affect the validity of any other provision.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement is 

held to be invalid the parties agree that the remaining provisions shall be deemed to be in full 

force and effect as if they had been executed by both parties, subsequent to the expungement 

of the invalid provisions.   

 

In witness whereof, each party to this Agreement has caused it to be executed in the county of 

Sweetwater, State of Wyoming on the date indicated below.  

 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County   Sweetwater Medics, LLC 

1200 College Drive       P.O. Box 356 

Rock Springs WY, 82901     Rock Springs WY 82901 

 

 

____________________________    _______________________ 

Irene Richardson, CEO      Steven Kourbelas, Manager 

 

________________________    ______________________ 

Date         Date 

104/119



Contract Check List 

 

This check list summarizes the purpose, cost and other contract provisions 

contained in the contract and assures that the contract has been reviewed by 

both the CEO and In-House Legal Counsel. 

1. Name of Contract:    The Radio Network 

 

2. Purpose of contract, including scope and description:    Radio advertising 

 

3. Effective Date: July 1, 2020   

   

4. Expiration Date:  One year from effective date- June 30, 2021 

  

5.  Rights of renewal and termination yes month to month after initial year. 

Advertiser (MHSC) has the right to terminate this contract by written notice to 

RadioNetwork within 30 days of termination date.  Is this auto-renew?   No 

6.   Monetary cost of the contract and is the cost included in the department 

budget?    

$583.33 per station (5) =$2916.65 per month for 12 months for an annual 

total of $35,000.  Added on  coverage for the GR Wolves games which is $250 

month for 8 months= $2000.00 This gets MHSC  three ads per game. 

Final total $37,000.  

7.  Jurisdiction/Choice of Law provision checked and changed to Wyoming if 

able to so.   Not addressed. 

8.   Any confidentiality provisions? No  

9.  Indemnification clause present?    No 

10.   Is this contract appropriate for other bids?   No 

11.    Is County Attorney review required?  No 

105/119



106/119



107/119



Contract Check List 

 

This check list summarizes the purpose, cost and other contract provisions 

contained in the contract and assures that the contract has been reviewed by 

both the CEO and In-House Legal Counsel. 

1. Name of Contract:    WYORADIO 

 

2. Purpose of contract, including scope and description: 10 radio spots per day 

on KQSW, KSIT, SMRZ, KRKK (300 average spots per month on each station 

compared to 125 spots last year.) Two radio spots during every UW Football 

Game and UW Basketball Game. 22 spots each on KSIT and KRKK during non-

UW months. Top of Page 800x200 banner on Wyo4News and 300x25 

embedded digital ad on. Wyo4News. Four featured/sponsored posts per 

month. Afternoon weather sponsorship on Wyo4News. Two weather 

sponsorship live reads M-F on KSIT, KMRZ, KQSW. Rotating information 

billboard on KMRZ, KSIT, KQSW. 

 

3. Effective Date:  Contract effective date is July 1, 2020.  

 

4. Expiration Date:  June 30, 2021 

 

5. Rights of renewal and termination?   Hospital (Advertiser) has right to 

terminate the contract with written notice 30 days before the termination 

date.  Is this auto-renew?  No 

 

6. Monetary cost of the contract and is the cost included in the department 

budget?   Contract is in 2020-21 budget. Monthly spend is $3,189, a $4.75 

savings over last year’s contract with many more advertising opportunities 

(FY21 Total spots: 14,124+UW games. FY20 Total Spots: 5,050.) TOTAL  

ANNUAL COST $38,268.00 

 

7. Jurisdiction/Choice of Law provision checked and changed to Wyoming if able 

to so.  Not addressed 

108/119



 

8. Any confidentiality provisions? No  

9. Indemnification clause present? No 

10. Is this contract appropriate for other bids? No 

11. Is County Attorney review required?  No 

109/119



MASTER AGREEMENT

Date: Sales
Rep:

Client:
Agency:
Contact: Rock Springs, Wy 82902
Street:
City: GR:(307) 875-5755   
State / Zip:
E-Mail: KSIT x KRKK x Web
Phone: KQSW x KMRZ x x
Fax:

BILLING
X MONTHLY X BROAD CAST EOS

TRADE CASH X

SPECIAL

CO-OP: No Yes

SCHEDULE # SPOTS :60 RATE SCHEDULE # SPOTS :60 RATE SCHEDULE # SPOTS :30 RATE SCHEDULE # SPOTS :30 RATE
KQSW KSIT KMRZ

12A-5A 12A-5A 12A-5A 12A-5A
12A-12A 12A-12A 12A-12A 12A-12A
5A-12A 5A-12A 5A-12A 5A-12A

6A-7P 6A-7P 6A-7P 6A-7P
6A-10A 6A-10A 6A-10A 6A-10A

6A-8P SA 6A-8P SA 6A-8P SA 6A-8P SA
6A-8P SU 6A-8P SU 6A-8P SU 6A-8P SU

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
$3189 $3189 $3189 $3189 $3189 $3189 $3189 $3189 $3189 $3189 $3189 $3189

Rev - 102915

NEW CONTRACT

NEW BUSINESS
PURCHASE ORDER #

6/17/20

dsutton@sweetwatermemorial.com

WY 82901

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Deb Sutton
1200 College Drive

307-362-3711

Rock Springs

WYORADIO
2717 Yellowstone Road 
PO Box 2128

Fax: (307) 362-8727

RS: (307) 362-3793

Advertiser has the right to terminate this contract by written notice to WyoRadio within 30 days of termination date.  Advertiser acknowledges that this document is a legal, binding contract. Invoices are due and payable on receipt. 
Advertiser further agrees to pay collection costs and attorney's fees. Late charges of 1.5% per month may be applied to balances over thirty days past due. 

NON DISCRIMINATION POLICY: (Licensee) and its station(s) do not discriminate in advertising contracts on the basis of race or ethnicity and will not accept any advertising which is intended to discriminate on the 
basis of race or ethnicity. Advertiser represents and warrants that it is not purchasing advertising time from (Licensee) or its station(s) that is intended to discriminate on the basis of race or ethnicity.

SPONSORSHIP
OR PACKAGE:

On Air/ Online Combo CDE with Cowboys and Weather Sponsorship                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
Client will receive 9 - :30 second spots per day, every day 5a-12a on all stations. (KMRZ, KSIT, KQSW, KRKK).                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Client will receive 1 :30 second spot M-F during morning shows on all stations. 6a-9a. (KMRZ, KSIT, KQSW, KRKK).                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Client will receive 2 Weather Sponsorship Live Reads per day, M-F on KMRZ, KQSW and KSIT.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

Client will receive rotating Information Billboard on KMRZ, KQSW and KSIT.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
Client will receive 800x200 pixel Top Of Page Banner Ad on Wyo4News.com.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Client will receive 300x250 pixel embedded/sponsor ad on Wyo4News.com                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Client will receive Afternoon Weather Sponsorship on Wyo4News.com                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
Client will receive University of Wyoming Sports Sponsorship and receive a minimum of 2 :30 spots in every UW Cowboys Football and Basketball game on KSIT and a 

minimum of 2 spots in every UW Cowgirls baskeball game on KRKK.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
In non-game month's client will receive an additional 22 :30 second spots on KRKK (July, August, September, October, April, May and June) and KSIT (July, August, April, 

May and June).                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Client will receive 4 Featured Posts on Wyo4News per month.  Additional posts may be purchased at $50 per post.  Non-used posts may be used the following months.                                                                                                                          

Client will also receive Wyo4News Facebook support through the term of this agreement.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
On Air/On-Line Combo Package Price: $3189 per month.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

Monthly total will be billed as follows:  KSIT: $947  KQSW: $793  KMRZ: $793  KRKK: $181  Wyo4News: $475

TERMS OF AGREEMENT

OAOL Combo C/D/E Cowboys Afternoon WX

START DATE
7/1/2020 6/30/21

END DATE

STATION(S)

CONFLICT CODE(S):

TOTAL AMOUNT: $38,268.00

STATION(S)

Date:Advertiser Signature:

TOTAL SPOTS: 14,124 + UW games

110/119



Contract Check List 

 

This check list summarizes the purpose, cost and other contract provisions 

contained in the contract and assures that the contract has been reviewed by 

both the CEO and In-House Legal Counsel. 

1. Name of Contract:  OVID TECHNOLOGIES, INC 

 

2. Purpose of contract, including scope and description:  Renewal of online 

medical library for physicians and clinical staff.  Subscription includes 

NEJM and OVID clinical and Hospital essential collection and user licenses 

for access by providers.   

 

3. Effective Date:  August 31, 2020  

   

4. Expiration Date:  August 31, 2021 

  

5.  Termination provisions:  If we don’t pay for renewal subscription providers 

won’t have licenses i.e. access to library                         Is this auto-renew? No 

 

6.   Monetary cost of the contract:  $16,984.00               Budgeted?    

7.  Jurisdiction/Choice of Law provision checked and changed to Wyoming if 

able to so.  NA 

8.   Any confidentiality provisions?  NA 

9.  Indemnification clause present?  NA 

10.   Is this contract appropriate for other bids?   NO 

11.    Is County Attorney review required?  No 

111/119



Contract Check List 

 

This check list summarizes the purpose, cost and other contract provisions 

contained in the contract and assures that the contract has been reviewed by 

both the CEO and In-House Legal Counsel. 

1. Name of Contracts:  Wolters Kluwer for UpToDate subscription service  

 

2. Purpose of contract, including scope and description:  UpToDate is a search 

engine for medical journals, articles and newest research.  Doctor to doctor - 

peer reviewed practice guidelines used for patient decision -making. Benefit for 

our physicians. They really use it a lot.  Report from Wolters Kluwer is that use is 

at 96% by our physicians.      

   

3. Effective Date:  August 1, 2020 

   

4.  Expiration Date:  1 year  

  

    5.  Rights of renewal and termination:    Yes with at least 30-day notice prior to 

expiration of the current term   Is this auto-renew? Yes   August 1  

6.   Monetary cost of the contract and is the cost included in the department 

budget?  Last year our provider numbers were virtually the same, but this year 

there is a subscription price increase due to increase in the number of Providers 

who access the on-line library. Last year the cost increased from the $15,000 to 

$17,000.  In 2018 our numbers were at 30, 2019 we fluctuated a little – but not 

enough to cause an additional increase due to provider number increase. This 

year our numbers are at 43 – this caused the additional increase ($22,823) and 

lead to the Amendment to Agreement.  TOTAL ANNUAL COST $22,823.00  

112/119



7.  Jurisdiction/Choice of Law provision checked and changed to Wyoming if 

able to so?  Not changed to Wy.  Massachusetts law as this is a Mass. Based 

Company that has contracts in all states.   

8.   Any confidentiality provisions? Yes as to intellectual property rights, 

product design and we will keep it confidential for 3 years after termination of 

the agreement.   Not the agreement itself.  

9.  Indemnification clause present?  No  

10.   Is this contract appropriate for other bids?   No 

11.    In-house Counsel Reviewed: Yes  

12.    Is County Attorney review required?  NA 

113/119



114/119



115/119



116/119



117/119



118/119



119/119


	EMPLOYEE POLICIES - EMPLOYEE CORRECTIVE ACTION

